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Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited 

Report on the Separate Ind AS Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying separate Ind AS financial statements of Delhi 
Airport Metro Express Private Limited (lithe Company"), which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2017, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in 
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Separate Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 
(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
separate Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
(financial position), loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), 
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the separate Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate Ind AS financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 

standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit of the separate Ind AS financial statements in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate Ind AS financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and the disclosures in the separate Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the separate Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control 

relevant to the Company's preparation of the separate Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the 
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the separate Ind 

AS financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the separate Ind AS financial statements. 

Opinion 
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conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind 

AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March 2017, and 

its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows 

and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements: 

1.	 The company had in earlier years, claimed CENVAT Credit of Rs. 43.04 crores on 

purchases of fixed assets and accordingly netted off the same from the "Right 

Under Concession Agreement". The claim of CENVAT Credit was disallowed by 

Commissioner, Rohtak, which was under dispute with Commissioner (Appeals) 

of Customs and Excise, Delhi and imposed a penalty of Rs. 65.01crores. The 

company has filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of commissioner 

and pending the outcome of the appeal, the same has not been provided in the 

books of accounts {refer Note 27 (4)}. 

2.	 Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), 

Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), "the company" has 

terminated the concession agreement and entire assets (including project assets) 

and operations have been handed over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013. 

The company has claimed an amount of Rs. 2823.17 crores, from DMRC being 

claim based on termination arising owning to DMRC's event of default. The 

matter has been referred to arbitration. The arbitration proceedings have been 

completed and award is awaited. Based on legal opinion, the assets, including 

project assets and borrowings have been continued to be shown in the books of 

accounts of the company. The pending the receipt of Arbitration Award, 

adjustment, if any, shall be carried out in the separate Ind AS financial 

statements at the time of final outcome of the arbitration (refer Note 28). 

3.	 The Company has accumulated losses which exceeded the net worth of the 

company. Pending final outcome of the arbitration, Holding Company 'Reliance 

Infrastructure Limited' continues to fund the Statutory and Other obligations of 

DAMEPL. As legally advised, DAMEPL's claim for the termination payments are 
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considered fully enforceable. The separate Ind AS financial statements are 
continued to prepare on going concern basis. (Refer Note 40 a). 

4.	 Since the company has already handed over the entire assets (including projects 
assets) and operations to DMRC and the amount claimed by the company from 
DMRC is higher than the carrying value of assets in the books, no adjustment has 
been made in the carrying value of assets/project assets on account of IND AS, 
which may otherwise be required (Refer Note 40 b). 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Other Matters 

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 
2016 and the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these 
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial 
statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006 audited by us, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted 
by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (/Ithe Order/l), issued 
by the Central Government in terms of sub section 11 of Section 143 of the Act and 
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, we give in /IAnnexure 1/1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 

and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable 

2.	 As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
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b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other 

Comprehensive Income), Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in 

Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid separate Ind AS financial statements comply with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). 

e)	 The going concern matter described sub paragraph 3 under the Emphasis of 

Matters paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the 

functioning of the company. 

f)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to our separate Report in "Annexure 2". 

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us: 

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its 

financial position in its Ind AS financial statements- Refer note 25 to 26 to 

the Ind AS financial statements; 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
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iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; 

iv.	 The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Ind AS financials 

statement as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during 

the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based on the 

audit procedures and relying on the management representation, we report 

that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts 

maintained by the Company. 

For ASP & Co. 
(Firm Reg no.: 000576N) 

Place of signature: New Delhi 
Membership No. 098941 Date: 1~t (1 l.j I ,'1-­

Chartered Accountants 

Rajendra Prasad 
(Partner) 
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ANNEXURE -1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Referred to in our report of even dated to the members of Delhi Airport Metro Express 
Private Limited on the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017: 

i)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the company has handed over all the assets to Delhi 
Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC) upon termination of concession agreement with 
effect from 1st July 2013, however, due to pending arbitration proceedings, the 
fixed assets have been continued to be shown in the books of accounts of the 
company. TIlerefore, clauses (a), (b) & (c) of (i) the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company. 

ii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the company does not have any inventory therefore 

clauses (ii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company 

iii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, clauses (a), (b) & (c) of 
(iii) the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 

during the course of audit, the Company has not granted any loans, investment, 
guarantees and security. Therefore, clause (iv) of the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company. 

v)	 In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the company has not 
accepted any deposit from the public in terms of Section 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there under. 
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vi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the Central Government has not prescribed 
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
the product of the company. Therefore, clause (vi) of the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company. 

vii) a) In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the undisputed 
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income­
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 

and any other statutory dues. as applicable have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay 
in few cases. There are no outstanding statutory dues for more than six months 
as on 31st March 2017. 

b) In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that there are no 
dues of income tax or sale tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of 
excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of 

viii)	 In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the company have 
defaulted in repayment of loans from financial institution and banks. Details as at 
the balance sheet date are as below: 

any dispute, except as below: 

Name 
Statute 

of 

Finance 
1994 

Act, 

Nature of 
Dues 

CENVAT 
penalty 

Period to 
which it 
relates 
A.Y. 2010-11 
& 2011-12 

Forum WhereAmount in Rs. 
dispute is 
pending 

65,01,44­

000. 

CESTAT 
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Particulars Period of 
default in 
days 

Interest 
Amount 
(Rs.'OOO) 

Axis Bank Limited, 
Mumbai 58 19/918 
Axis Bank Limited, 
Mumbai 30 18/017 

Allahabad Bank 58 14/162 

Allahabad Bank 30 12/831 

Andhra Bank 58 9/133 

Andhra Bank 30 8/271 

Bank of India 58 19/720 

Bank of India 30 17/852 

Canara Bank, Mumbai 58 7/288 

Canara Bank, Mumbai 30 6/607 

Central Bank of India 58 19/778 

Central Bank of India 30 17/908 

Dena Bank 58 19/728 

Dena Bank 30 18/090 

Punjab & Sind Bank 58 14/987 

Punjab & Sind Bank 30 13/579 

UCOBank 58 22/318 

UCOBank 30 20/190 

Canara Bank, London* 58 8,439 

Principal 
Amount 
(Rs.'OOO) 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Default 
remedied status 
as on date of 
approval of 
financials 

Not paid 
Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 

Not paid 
-
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Canara Bank, London* 30 7,894 
Not paid 

IIFC, UK 60 20,918 -
Not paid 

IIFC, UK 31 19,687 -
Not paid 

IIFC, UK 1 20,726 -
Not paid 

Total 
3,58,040 

- Not paid 

ix)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 

during the course of audit, the company did not raise any money by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans 
during the year. Therefore clause (ix) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 

2016 are not applicable to the Company. 

x)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 

during the course of audit, no fraud on the company or by the company, by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

xi)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the Company is a private company and section 197 

does not applies to private company. Therefore clause (Xi) of the Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company. 

xii)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, clause 
(xii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiii)	 In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 & 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the separate Ind 

AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
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xiv)	 In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the company has made 
preferential allotment of Sub-ordinate debts during the year and the requirement 
of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount 
raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised. 

xv)	 In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the 
company and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the Company has not 

entered into non- cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him. 
Therefore, clause (xv) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not 

applicable to the Company. 

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
during the course of audit, the Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

For ASP & Co. 
(Firm Reg no.: 000576N) 

Place of signature: New Delhi 

Dated: , ~r0 "i r Jr 

Chartered Accountants 

Head Office: 19 A, Gobind Mansion, lInd Floor, H-Block, Connaught Circus, New Delhi -110001
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ANNEXURE -2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Referred to in our report of even dated to the members of Delhi Airport Metro Express 
Private Limited on the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2017: 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi 
Airport Metro Express Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March 2017 in 
conjunction with our audit of the separate Ind AS financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA!'). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. 
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Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the separate Ind AS financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of separate Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of separate 
Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
acc ce with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 

S? & Co 
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provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the separate Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2017, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

For ASP & Co.
 
(Firm Reg no.: 000576N)
 

Chartered Accountants
 

Place of signature: New Delhi 

Dated: 1~, 0 Y f)~ 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE UMITED 

Balance sheet.ls at·March 31, 2017 

(Amonnt in Rs,'OOO) 

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2017 As at March 3i, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 

Assets 

I. Non-current .lssets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2.1 90,802 90,802 90,802 

(b) Other Intangible Assets 2.2 27,124,551 27,124.551 27,124,551 

(c) Financial assets - - -
(d) Other non-current assets 

(i) Advance other than capital advance 3 40,898 40,898 40,948 

(i) Others 3 430,401 430,401 430,401 

27,686,652 27,686,652 27,686,702 

Current assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 4 66 1,562 18,684 

(ii) Trade receivables 5 1,813 1,813 15,629 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 8,644 6,690 36,001 

(iv) Other Recoverable 7 9,666,895 7,667,807 5,177,012 

(b) Current tax assets 8 12 2,322 15,262 

(c) Prepaid assets and other advances 9 1,266 1,281 17 

9,678,696 7,681,475 5,262,605 

Tota I assets 37,365,348 35,368,127 32,949,307 

Equity and liabilities 

Equity 

Share capital 10 (a) 100 100 100 

Other equity 11 16,592,216 13,885,473 10,416,244 

16,592,316 13,885,573 10,416,344 
Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) BorrOWings 12 16.075,930 18,464,818 18,885,027 

(b) Prov isions 13 4,456 4,942 3,505 

16,080,386 18,469,760 18,888,532 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) BorrOWings 14 2,429,199 713,330 1,800,124 

(ii) TradE' payables 

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and 
Small EnterprisE' 

15 - -

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro 
EnterprisE' and Small Enterprise 

15 l.272,067 1,293,594 1,306,160 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 516,056 531,659 22,992 

(b) Provisions 17 1,131 819 2,279 

(c) Other c'urrentliabilities 18 474,193 473,392 512,876 

4,692,646 3,012,794 3,644,431 
Total Equity and Liabilities 37,365,348 35,368,127 32,949,307 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-45 

In terms of our report of even date attached
 

For ASP & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
 

(Firm Registration No. 000576N)
 

~~ 
Satish Kumar Mishra 

.. artner Whole Time Director Director 

M No 098941 DIN-03538005 

~. ~~~~ 
DIN:O~ 

Place of Signature: New Delhi
 

Date: I "'b , ~ 4 I , ~
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

Revenue from Operations 19 - -
Other Income 20 11,000 2;975 
Total Income 11,000 2,975 

Expenses 

Employee benefit expenses 21 42,977 44,628 

Finance Cost 22 13,884 14,977 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 2.1 & 2.2· - -
Other Expenses 23 39,236 61,052 

Total Expenses 96,097 120,657 

Profitj (Loss) before exceptional item and tax (85,098) (117,682) 

Tax Expense: 

Current Tax - -

Deferred Tax - -
Profitj (Loss) for the year after tax (85,098) (117,682) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Actuarial (gain)jloss in respect of defined benefit plan 24 (840) 689 

Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of taxes (840) 689 

Total Comprehensive income for the period (84,257) (118,371) 

Profitj (Loss) for the period attributable to: 

-Owners of the Company (85,098) (117,682) 

-Non-controlling interests - -
(85,098) (117,6S2) 

Other comprehensive income for the period attributable to 

-Owners of the Company (840) 689 

-Non-controlling interests - -
(840) 689 

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to 

-Owners of the Company (84,257) (118,371) 

-Non-controlling interests - -
(84,257) (118,371) 

Earning per equity share 

(1) Basic 37 (8,510) (11,768) 

(2) Diluted 37 (8,510) (11,768) 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-45 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

For ASP & Co. 

(Firm Registration No. 000576N) 

C d Accountants 

MNo098941 

For and on behalf of the Board 

A::i)'it~ 
. Abhay Mishra 

Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02132305 

~\~
satis~arMishra 

Director 

DIN-03538005 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 

Date: 1~ 10'-1 /1 :t 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
 

-----_. ­

, Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2017 

Particulars . For the year ended March For the year ended 
31,2017 March 31, 2016 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

(A)	 Cash flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit j (Loss) after tax (84,257) (118,371 
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow: 

Finance Cost (including Interest and Finance Charges) 13,884 14,977 
Finance Income (including Interest & Dividend Income and Capital (455) (2,807) 
Gain) 

Net Foreign Exchange Differences (10,526) 15,198 

Provision for Doubtful Debts - 12,008 

Bad Debts - 57 
Cash loss from operating before Working Capital Changes	 (81,354) (78,938) 

Working Capital Adjustment: 

(Tncrcnse)/Decl'ease in Tratlp Rplf:,ivabll?s - 13,81!J 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (1,999,088) (2,490,795) 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 2,324 11,676 

Increasej(Decrease) in Trade Payablc~ (21,526) (12,566) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial Liabilities (15,603) 508,667 
Increasej (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 802 (39,482) 

Increase j (Decrease) in Current Provision 312 (1,460) 

Increasej(Decrease) in Non Current Provision (486) 1,437 

Provision for Doubtful Debts - (12,008) 

Bad Debts - (57) 
Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) (2,114,619) (2,099,711) 

(B)	 Cash Flow from Investing Activities 

Fixed Assets j Intangibles - ­
Finance Income (including Interest & Dividend Income and Capital 455 2,807 
Gain) 

(Increase)jDecrease in Investment 1,496 17,122 

(Increase)jDecrease in Advances other Than Capital Advances - 50 

(Increase)jDecrease in Other Non current Assets - ­

Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) 1,951 19,979 

(C)	 Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Secured Loans (net) (673,019) (1,507,004) 

Other Equity Component of Financing Instrument 2,791,000 3,587,600 

Financial Expenses (13,884) (14,977) 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 10,526 (15,198) 
Cash flow from Financing Activities (C) 2,114,623 2,050,421 

. 

. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Particulars For the year ended Match for the year ended 
31,2017 March 31, 2016 

(Amountin Rs.'OOO) (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

(D) Net Increasej(Decrease)in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)	 1,954 (29,311 

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash equivalents 6,232 35,543 

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash equivalents 8,186 6,232 

Net Increascf(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (29,311) 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer note 6) 

Cash in Hand 

Balances with Banks 

(a) In Current account	 8,186 6,232 

(b) In Deposit account 

8,186 6,232 

Notes 

i.	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the IND AS-7 on Cash Flow 
Statements. 

11.	 Previous year's figures have been rearranged! regrouped wherever necessary 

In terms of our report of even date attached 

For ASP & Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board 

(Firm Registration No. 000576N)
 

Chartered Accountants
 

~~
 
~-; 

Partner
 
M No 098941
 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 

Date: , 'tJ I 0 lJ / '7­

~ma 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 02132305 

~ 

rP .. \,.I
~h~Mishra
 
Director 
DIN-03538005 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESSPRIVATE LIMITED 

Statementof Change in Equity for the year ended March 31,2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars Share 
capital 

Other Equity-
Equity Component 

of compound 
financial 

instruments 

Retained 
Earning 

.Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Total Equity 

As at 1 April 2015 100 17,573,168 (7,156,924) - 10,416,344 
Net Profit! (Loss) for FY 15-16 - - (117,681) - (117,681) 

. Actuarial (gain)!loss in respect of 
defined benefit plan 

- (689) (689) 

Sub Debt Taken! (Paid) during 
the year 

- 3,587,600 3,587,600 

As at March 31,2016 100 21,16n,7fiR (7,274,605) (689) 13,885,574 
Net Profit! (Loss) for FY 16-17 - - (85,098) - (85,098) 

Actuarial (gain)!loss in respect of 
defined benefit plan 

- 840 840 

Sub Debt Taken! (Paid) during 
the year 

- 2,791,000 2,791,000 

As at March 31,2017 100 23,951,768 (7,359,703) 151 16,592,316 

The above consolidated statement of changes m eqUity should be read m conjunction WIth the accompanymg notes. 
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DELHI AlRPORT MElRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 1. Corporate Information, Basis of Preparation of Fillancials and Significant Accounting Policies 

1.1 Background of the Company: 

a. Corporate Information 

Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited ("the Company or SPV" or "DAMEPL"), having CIN numbei 
·tJI.'4210DL2008PTC176177, was incorporated on April 01, 2008 having its registered office at Radisson Blue plaza, Commercia 

Tower, A - Wing, Ground Floor, NH-8 Mahipalpur, South West Delhi, New Delhi 110037. 

DAMEPL has been set up to undertake the business of "Design, Installation, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance of Airporl 
Metro Express Line i.e. New Delhi - Indira Gandhi International Airport - Dwarka Sector-21" (project). Delhi Metro Rail Corporatior 
Limited (DMRC) has entered into a Concession Agreement with the Company on August 25, 2008 for the project for a period of 3C 
years. 

Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), "the company" has terminated thE 
concession agreement and entire assets and operations have been handed over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013. 

1.2	 Basis of Preparation 

a.	 Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, 
the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These are the 
Company's first Ind AS compliant financial statements and Ind AS 101 'First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards' has 
been applied. 
For all the periods up to and including 31 March 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India, accounting standards speCified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company 
followed the provisions of Ind AS 101 in preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as of the date of transition, viz. 1 April 2015. 
Some of the Company's Ind AS accounting policies used in the opening Balance Sheet are different from its previous GAAP policies 
applied as at 31 March 2015, and accordingly the adjustments were made to restate the openingbalances as per Ind AS. The resulting 
adjustments arose from events und transactions before the date of transitiun tu IndAS. Therefore, as required by Ind AS 101, those 
adjustments were rec.oenimd directly through retained eflrnings as at 1 April 2015. This is the effect of the general rule of Ind AS 101 
which i.'; 10 ilpply Ind AS retrospeclively. 
An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of 
the Company is provided in note 1.3. 

b.	 Basis of Measurement 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND ASs) with the gOing-concern principle 
and on a historical cost basis except for Certain Financials Assets and Liabilities that are measured at Fair Value (Refer Accounting 
Policy Regarding Financial Instruments). The methods used to measure fair values are discussed below. 

The presentation and grouping of individual items in the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow statement 
are based on the principle of materiality. 
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DELHI AIRPORT MElRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between marke 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuatior 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset 01 

liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measuremenl 
date. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorised within the fair valUE 
hierarchy, describes as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at thE 
measurement date; 
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Levell, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly; and 
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

c.	 Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. 

d.	 Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An asset is classified as current if: 

It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
It is expected to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or 
The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after 

the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 
It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 
The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the
 
counterparty does not affect this classification.
 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.
 

e.	 Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the 
application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures concerning 
the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and management's judgments 
are baseq on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 
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DELHI AIRPORT MEIRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statemeritsfor the year ended March 31, 2017 

1.3	 Significant accounting policies 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. TheSE 
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. 
The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 16 & Ind AS 38 
retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to 
Ind AS. Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as at 1 
April 2015, i.e.; the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, were maintained on transition to Ind AS. 

a	 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability Of equity instrument of 
another entity. . 

a.l	 Financial assets 

a.l.l	 Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or 
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. 

a.l.2	 Subsequent measurement 

Debt instruments at amortized cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) 
on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost 
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized 
in the Statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCI) 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by colleCting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and 
foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest 
income using the EIR method. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss) 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, Which does not meet the criteria for categorization as al 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 
In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as al 
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the profit and loss. 

Equity investments 
All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to claSSify the same either as at 
FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 
dividp'U]1;, HfP fP('Il~lli/pd ill Illp nrT TlIpfp i.'-: IlIl fPI'Y/'ling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of iIWeStIi'\er\t. However, 
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss. 

a.1.3	 Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 
-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
-The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

a.1.4	 Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the follOWing financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

(a)Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade 
receivables and bank valance. 

(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI. 

(c) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to 
proVide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then 
the entity reverts to recogniZing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 
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DELHI AIRPORT MElRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

a.2	 Financial liabilities 

a.2.1	 Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables; 
or as derivatives deSignated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized 
initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's 
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and 
derivative financial instruments. 

a.2.2	 Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees Or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 
The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade payables and other 
contractual liabilities. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities deSignated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or leiss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred 
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the 
Company that are not deSignated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are deSignated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities deSignated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are deSignated at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities deSignated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable 
to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, 
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not deSignated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Borrowings 

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
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DELHI AIRPORT MElRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 1'01' the yeM ended March 31, 2017 

b.	 Intangible Assets :
 
Initial recognition and measurement
 

The company has classified the rights under the Concession Agreement to manage, operate and maintain the Airport Metro Expres: 
Line as Intangible Assets being 'Rights under Concession Agreement'. The value of the Intangible asset was measured anc 
recognized on the date of completion of construction for the completed portion of the project at the cost incurred on the Projecl 
towards construction, Design, Installation and Commissioning of the Airport Express Line. 

Cost incurred on project includes all project related expenditure viz civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection 
materials, pre-operative expenditure, expenditure incidental/ attributable to the construction of project and related borrowing cost. 
These expenses are net of recoveries and income (net of tax) from surplus funds arising out of project specific borrowings. 

The Comp<my has elected to utilize thp. option unclp.r Iml AS 101 by not applying the provisions of fnn AS 3H retro8pc'Ctivoly and 
continue tu u~e the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of trctn~ition to Ind AS. Therp.fore, the 
carrying amount of intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2015, i.e.; the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, 
were maintaineJ un transition to lnd AS. 

Derecognition 

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and 
losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount 
of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement.of profit and loss. 

c.	 Property, Plant & Equipment: 

Initial recognition and measurement 

The gross block of the Property, Plant and EqUipment's are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including any cost attributable 
to bringing the asset to their working condition for their intended use, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in 
value. 

The carrying values of Property, Plant and EqUipment's are revieweJ fur impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

Derecognition 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in statement of Profit & Loss in the year the asset is derecognised. 

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2017 

d. Depreciation & Amortisation: 
(i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and EqUipment's is proVided on the Straight Line Method rates over the useful fives as prescribed ir
 
the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
 
Depreciation on additions to/ deductions from property, plant & equipment during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from/ up tc
 
the month in which the asset is available for use/ disposed.
 

(ii) Amortisation: 
Intangible Assets being 'Rights under Concession Agreement' are amortized over the remaining Concession period on straight line
 
method as per Ind AS - 38 as prescribed in Schedule - II of the Companies Act, 2013.
 
Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight line method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years,
 
whichever is less.
 

(iii) Leasehold Improvement: 
Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the respective lease period. 

However, depreciation/ amortization on assets are not charged w.e.f. 1st July, 2013 as the entire assets had been handed over to 
DMRC on account of termination of concession agreement, as explained above. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part ofFinancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

e.	 Impairment of Non- Financial Assets: 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is an: 
indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. If any such indication exists, then th, 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use. II 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflect: 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing 
assets that cannot be tested indiVidually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows frorr 
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit", OJ 
"CGU"). 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of eGUs are reduced from the carrying 
amounts of the assets of the CGU 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at Poach reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

f.	 Borrowing Cost: 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ development or erection of qualifying 
assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying 
assets are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 
When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs incurred are 
capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the 
capitalization of the borrOWing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrOWing that are outstanding 
during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or erection of the qualifying asset. 

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when suhstilntially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their 
intended uses are complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing 
of funds. Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted 
from	 the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. 
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred. 

g.	 Provisions: 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the 
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting 
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
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DELHI AIRPORT ME'IRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming pad of Financial StateJUt!nts for the year ,ended March 31, 2017 

h. Employee benefits 
I. Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into separate entitie 
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plan 
are recognized as an employee benefits expense in profit or loss in the period during which services are rendered by employees. 

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund, etc. are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, as an( 
w hen incurred. 

II. Defined benefit plans
 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
 

The gratuity is fund'ed by the Company and is managed by separate
 

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of 

future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted te 
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate 
is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates 
approximating the terms of the Company's obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are 
expected to be paid. 

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a 
benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of 
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. An 
economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Any 
actuarial gains or losses are recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise. 

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by employees is recognized in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest 
immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

III. Other long-term employee benefits
 

Benefits under the Company's leave encashment constitute other long term employee benefits.
 

The Company's net obligation in respect of leave encashment is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return 
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any 
related assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the 
reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company's obligations. The calculation is performed using 
the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, 

IV. Short-term benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is proVided. 
A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service proVided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

i.	 Lease 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified a: 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basi~ 

over the lease term. 

Finance leases which effectively transfer to the company substantial risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, an 
capitalized and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the leasE 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly 
against income. 

j.	 Revenue Recognition: 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can bE 
reliably measured. Revenue comprises: 

(I) Income from f/;lre collection is recognized on th~ h~5is of use of tukens, money value ot actual usago In mflC! of Smnrt ennis nna 
other direct fare collection. 

(ii) Interest income is recogn.ized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on lime Proportion Basis 
(using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset). 

(iii) Income on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investment. Income from mutual fund scheme having fixed 
maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such investment. 

k.	 Foreign Currency Transactions 

The functionalj reporting currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. 

(i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

(ii) Foreign currency monetary items (assets and liabilities) are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. 
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Gains and losses, if any, at the year-end in respect of monetary assets and monetary liabilities are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except in case of gains or losses arising on long term foreign currency monetary items relating to the acquisition of 
depreciable assets which are added to or deducted from the cost of such assets. 

1.	 Earnings per share: 
Basic earnings are calculated by dividing the net profitj (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earning per share are calculated by diViding the net profitS 
attributable to ordinary equity holders and potential equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares 
outstanding during the year and weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluted 
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

m. Accounting for Taxes on Income: 

Provision for current tax represents the amount that would be payable based on computation of tax as per the provisions of thE 
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year aftel 
taking into consideration benefits admissible under the Income Tax Act, 1961.Current tax expense is recognized in profit or los~ 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized 
in DeI or equity. 

~eferred ta~ i~ r~cogniz~d us~ng the b~lance sheet method, providing for tempor~ry differences between the carrying amounts of 
aSsets and lIabilItIes for fmancIaI reportmg purposes and the amounts used for taxatIon purposes. Deferred tax IS measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, but they 
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized Simultaneously. 

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which 
case it is recognized in DCI or equity. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash comprises of Cash on Hand, Cheques on Hand and demand deposits with Banks. Cash Equivalents are short term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in 
value. 

o. Cash flow statement 

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. 

p. Contingent liabilities: 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a 
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis 
of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the 
current management estimate. 

q. Exemptions and exceptions availed 

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind 
AS 101, as explained below. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements as at the transition date under Ind AS and previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or 
another appropriate category of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the company in restating its previous GAAP 
financial statements, including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 
31,2016. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes fonning part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

1.3	 Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and Ind AS 

Ind AS 101 requires the company to reconcile equity, total'comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables 
represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS. 

I.	 Head wise reconciliation of Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2015 and 2016. 

Reconciliation of equity as at date of tran'sition - April 1, 2015 

Particulars Adjustments IndAS 
first-time 
Notes to Regrouped 

previous GAAP' 
adoption 

Assets 

I. Non-current assets 

90,802 90,802(a) Property, plant and equipment -
27,124,551 27,124,551(b) Other Intangible Assets -

(c) Financial assets -
(d) Other non-current assets 

40,948(i) Advance other than capital advance 40,948 

0) Others 

-
430,401 430,401 

27,686,702 

-
27,686,702 

Current assets 

-

(a) Financial assets 

18,684 18,684 

(ti) Traue reLeivables 

(i) Investments -
15,629 - 15,629 
36,001(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 36,001-

5,177,012(iv) Othp.r 5,177,012-
-15,262(b) Current tax assets 15,262 

17(c) Other current assets 17 

5,262,605 

-
5,262,605 

TotaI assets 
-

32,949,307 32,949,307-
Equity and Iia bilities 

Equity 

Share capital 100 100 

Other equi tv 

-
(7,236,524)i & ii 17,652,768 10,416,244 

(7,236,424) 17,652,768 10,416,344 
Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

36,526,013(i) BorroWings i& ii (17,640,985) 18,885,027 

3,505(b) Provisions 3,505-

36,529,518 18,888,532 

Current liabilities 

(17,640,985) 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

1,811,907i& ii(i) Borrowings (11,783) 1,800,124 

(ii) Trade payables -
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and 

- - -
Small Enterprise 

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 
1,306,1601.306,160 -

Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprise 

22,992(iii) Other financial liabilities 22,992-
2,279(b) Prav isions 2,279-

512,875(c) Other current liabilities 512,875 

3,656,213 

-
(11,783) 3,644,431 

Total Equity and Liabilities 032,949,307 32,949,307 

41018161
Stamp



DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes fonning part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 20.17 

Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition - March 31, 2016 

Particulars 

Assets 

I. Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Other Intangible Assets 

(c) Financial assets 

(d) Other non-current assets 

(i) Advance other than capital advance 

(i) Others 

Current assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iv) Other 

(b) Current tax assets 

(c) Other Current Assets 

Tota I assets 

Notes to 
first-time 
adoption 

Regrouped 
previous GAAP' 

90,802 

27,124,551 

-

40,898 

430,401 

27,686,652 

1,562 

1,813 

6,690 

7,667,807 

2,322 
1,281 

7,681,475 

35,368,127 

Adjustments 

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

IndAS 

90,802 

27,124,551 

-
-

40,898 

430,401 

27,686,652 

1,562 

1,813 

6,690 

7,667,807 

2,322 

1,281 

7,681,475 

35,368,127 

Equity and liabilities 

Equity 

Share capital 

Other equity 

Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(b) Provisions 

i& ii 

i & ii 

100 

(7,343,112) 

(7,343,012) 

39,681,936 

4,942 

-
21,228,585 

21,228,585 

(21,217,118) 

-

100 

13,885,473 

13,885,573 

18,464,818 

4,942 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and 
Small Enterprise 

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 
Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprise 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Provisions 

i& ii 

39,686,879 

724,797 

-

1,293,594 

531,659 

819 

(21,217,118) 

(11,467) 
-

-

-

-

18,469,760 

713,330 

-

-

1,293,594 

531,659 

819 

(c) Other cllrrentliabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

473,392 

3,024,261 

35,368,127 

-
(11,467) 

(0) 

473,392 

3,012,793 

35,368,127 
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DELHI AIRPORT MEmo EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

n.	 Equity Reconciliation Notes to As At As At 
first-time March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 
adoption 

Equity under previous GAAP (regrouped) 100 100 
Less: Adjustment 

Equity under Ind AS	 100 100 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

III.	 Other Equity Reconciliation Notes to As At As At 
first-time March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

"l[:	 adoption 
Other Equity under previous GAAP (regrouped) (7,343,112) (7,236,524) 

Add: Processing Fees paid on Term Loan	 67,818 79,600 

Add: Sub-orJinated debt <:onverted into Equity ii 

Subordinate Debt 14.502,028 14,502,028 
0% Subordinate Debt 5.926.500 2,338,900 
Inter Corporate Deposit 732,240 732,240 

Other Equity under Ind AS	 13,885,473 10,416,244 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

IV.	 Profit Reconci liation Notes to Year Ended 
first-time March 31, 2016 
adoption 

Net Income under Previous GAAP (106,588) 
Less: Amortisation of Processing Fees paid on Term Loan (11,783) 

Employee Benefit iii 689 
Net Income under Ind AS (117,682) 

V.	 Reconciliation of Cash Flow
 

There is no change activity wise cash flow, hence no reconciliation has been disclosed.
 

Notes to first-time adoption 

Note i	 Under Previous GAAP, Processing fees paid for term loan have been capitalised in the intangible assets. Whereas under!ND AS Processing 
iees paid needs to be amortised over the period of term loan. Since, the Company has terminated the concession agreement with effect from 
1st Jul 2013 and entire assets have been handed over to DMRC. Since the Company has availed the deemed cost option provided in !ND AS 
101. The Value of Intangible Assets has not been changed. The adjustment related to the outstanding loan to bring them in conformity with 
IND AS 109. it has been recognised in the Retained Earnings on the Date of Transition. 

Note ii	 Under Previous GAAP, Subordinate Debt and Inter Corporate Deposits were classified as BorrOWings. However, under !ND AS Subordinate 
Debt and Inter Corporate Deposits are treated as equity instruments, as per the guidance in Paragraph 16 of Ind AS 32. 

Note iii Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the return on plan asset 
and actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset which is recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 2.1: Property, plant and equipment (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) NET BLOCK 
As at As at 

Mar 31,2017 I Apr1,2016 

DEPRECIATION 

56,872 56,872 

608 608 

14,908 14,908 

18,414 18,414 

90,802 90,802 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

GROSS BLOCK ( AT COST) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 
uescnptlOn As at 

Apr1,2015 
AdditIOns lJeletlon Adjustments 

During the Year During the Year 
As at 

Mar 31,2016 

As at 

Apr1,2015 

rorthe Un lJeletlons 

Year During the Year 
Asat 

Mar 31,2016 
As at 

1 
As at 

Mar 31,2016 Apr1,2015 

Property, plant and equipment' 
Leasehold Property Improvement 

Fixture & l'umiture 

Vehicles 

Office Equipment 

IT & Commwlication equipment's 

56,872 

608 

14,908 

18,414 

90,802 - - -

56,872 

608 

14,908 

18,414 

90,802 

-

. . 

-

. 

56,872 56,872 

608 608 
14,908 14,908 

18,414 18,414 

90,802 90,802Total 

Uescnptlon AS at Additions lJeJetion Adjustments 

Apr1,2016 During the Year During the Year 

Property, plant and equipment' 
Leasehold Property Improvement 

Fixture & Fumiture 56,872 ­
Vehicles 608 
Office Equipment 14,908 ­
IT & Communication equipment's 18,414 
Total 90,802 ­

-
-

. . 

As at rorthe . un ueletlons AsatAs at 
Apr1,2016 Year During the Year Mar 31,2017Mar 31,2017 

56,872 

608 

14,908 

18,414 

90,802 

-

- - . ­

~ 1\rrr.,u;1nl La cl"l"tdln p\"{:-nl"s 01 dd'allll lJy DL'lhi l\·1.ptro Rail CorpomlioTl (J.l;\'fI~C).. \")plh.i Airport \ldro F:\rn:r.,s Pd\'(\(l' 1.,irnill:'d (D,:\\·HJI!.), "tlw \'I)m1"dl1.\"" l\i~.,) (~'l'mi.l.Mtl:ld Ill\' c\'rh\'.')~h)n dgrf?PllWH( I....'it.h ..'lli.yt fn.~.Il~ l,;,t lu! 2.n'.IJ and l'nljJ'\~ fl..'iSl?l" 

(induding pn*'(1 as.St'ls) h~H't' h"cn hrl11\.t('d over to 1)l\·lHC dnd i"Jw l.'l'mr<ll1.\' \'Pt1·StIS to prflv.il"h·: t1Pprf'cii.'lt.ic.m/ rlmprli~lltjlln. II,ClVn-'Yl'J', dut' lo p(l'Ildi,ng t1"h' ')t'Uh-'nh'lll Ullll."t'S thn.1ugh i'.-rriLrrtl1CJ.TJ, ~1(1'I~pl'clIH:(, uf ~·l~rm.indtion by n.\!U~(· 

opinion, Hw .-lSSt~l"s including' proj(ld assl:ll's, hi;l\.·e 11l1(l'n (ontinueu 1"('1 l1fl sht\\Arn in t.lw bnoks ("If a(t.'(Junls of tht t"nmpMl'V' 

Deemed Cost at April 1, 2015 (Amount in Rs.'OOO)-
Gross Block Accumulated Net Block Ind AS Deemed Cost 

Depreciation Adjustments 

As a,t Apr 1, 2015 As at Apr1, As at Apr 1,2015 
2015 

As at Apr1, 
2015 

Property, plant and equipment' 
Leasehold Property Improvement 15,151.16 15,151.16 -- -

.Fixture & Fumiture 72,271.73 56,872.20 56,872.20 

Vehicles 

15,399.54 
607,67 

Office Ecuipment 

607,67855.73 248.06 
14,907,90 

IT & Commw'lication equipment's 

17,657,92 14,907,902,750.02 

18,414.07 
Total 

32,771,80 14,357.72 18,414.07 -
90,801.8547,906.50 90,801.65138,708.35 -
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Fhandal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 2.2: Other Intangible ..I.ssets-
Description 

Other Intangible AsRls • 

Software 

Rights Under Concession Agreement 

Total 

Description 

. Other Intangible Assets' 

Software 

Rights Lnder Concession Agreement 

Total 

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) 

As at Additions Deletion Adjustments I Asat 

Apr1,2016 During the Year During the Year Mar 31,2017 

20 20 

27,124,531 27,124,531 

27,124,551 - - - 27,124,551 

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) 
Asat Additions Deletion Adjustments As at 

Aprl,2015 During the Year During the Year Mar 31,2016 

20 20 

27,124,531 - .. - 27,124,531 

27,124,551 - . 27,124,551 

l;..~.·. 

1.1. 
1..•. 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

DEPRECLUION NETBLOO< 

As at FOI'the On Deletions .j As at As at As at 

Aprl,2016 Year Ourlnll the Year Mar 31,2017 Mar 31,2017 I Apr1,2016 

20 20
 

27..124.531 27,124,531
 

27,124,551 27,124,551
 

IAmount in Rs.'OOOI- NET BLOCK
 

As at FOI'the On Deletions Asat
 
DEPRECIATION 

Asat As at 

Aprl,2015 Year During tlte Year Mar 31,2016 Mar 31,2016 I Apr 1,2015 

20 20
 

27,124,531 27,124,531
 

27,124,551 27,124,551
 
-

,~ 
.~ 

• Fursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), Delhi Airport :\ietro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), "the company" has terminated the concession agreement with effect from 1st Jul 2013 and enti1e assets (including 
project assets) have been handed over to OMRC and the Company ceases to provide depreciation! amortisation. However, due to pending the setHement of cases through arbitration, acceptance of termination by OMRC and based on legal opinion, the assels /~I 
includins project asse:.;, have 'oeen continued to be shown in the books of accounts of the company. J~ 

:~ 
BreakutJ of "Ri"hts U:\der Concession Aueement" 
Assets 

Denot, Workshop & other Civil works 

Electrical & :\iechanicd Equipment's 

Trains ana Track Works 

Total 

Deemed Cost at April 1, __015 

'Other Intangible 
Software 

Rights UndEr Concessim Agreement 

Tolal 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

4,250,901.74 

Asat As at 
March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

4,250,901.74 4,250,901.74 

11,977,468.32 11,977,468.32 

10,976,765.36 10,976,765.36 

27,205,135.41 27,205,135.41 

I, 
11,977,468.32
 

10,976,765.36
 

27,205,135.41
 'I···· 
I 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 
I 

..=5'; 

Accumulated Net Block IndAS Deemed Cost 
Depreciation Adjustments 

As atAprl, As at Aprl, As at Apr 1, 2015 
2015 2015 

383.15 20.17 20.17 

80,604.69 27,124,530.72 .. 27,124,530.72 

80,987.84 27,124,550.89 27,124,550.89 

51Gross Block 
~ 
~f1 

-;,~.As at Aprl, 2015 
:!~ 

/~ 
>~ 

403.31
 

27,205,135.41
 t! 
27,205,538.73 

\'C: 

i 

* .
NE * 

19\ 0 J!!
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Nanzof Description of the arrangement Significant terms of the arrangement Intangible Assets Financial Asset 

Project Gross book value Net book value 

Airpo:J::"t Design, Installation, Period of concession August 25, 2008 to August 25, March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 

Metro Commissioning, Operation and 2038* 
Express Maintenance of Airport Metro Remuneration NA* 27,124,531 27,124,531 -
Line Express Line i.e. New Delhi - Indira Investment grant from concession grantor 

Gandhi International Airport ­ Infrastructure return at the end of concession period 
Dwarka Sector-21 (project) 

NA* 

NA* 

March 31, 2016 

27,124,531 

March 31, 2016 
27,124,531 

March 31, 2016 

-

Investment and renewal obligations NA* April!, 2015 April 1, 2015 April 1, 2015 

Re-pricing dates NA* 27,124,531 27;124,531 -
Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is NA* 
determined 

Premium payable to grantor NA* 

* PUr5UaI1t to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), "the company" has terminated the concession agreement :~j

Iwith effect from 1st Ju12013 and entire assets (including project assets) have been handed over to DMRC and the Company ceases to provide depreciation! amortisation. However, due to pending the 
settlE-Dent of cases through arbitration, acceptance of termination by DMRC and based on legal opinion, the assets including project assets, have been continued to be shown in the books of accounts 
of the company. Ij
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statementb for the YCilr ended MaTch 31, 2017 
(Amount in RI;. '(}(){ 

3 

Particulars 

Other NonCurrent Assets 

(I) Advance other than capital advance 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

As 2 

April 1, 201 

Security Deposits 

Sub Total (A) 

40,898 

40,898 

40,898 

40,898 

40,94B 

40,948 

(II) Others 

CENVAT Credit Receivable [Refer note - 25(4)] 

Sub Total (B) 

430,401 

430,401 

430,401 

430,401 

430,401 
430,401 

Total 471,299 471,299 471,349 

4 Current Investment 

Invesbnent in Mutual Funds (Quoted, Non-Trade) 

Reliance Money Manager Fund-Daily Dividend 
Reinvestment 

66 

Reliance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Daily Dividend 
Option Plan (CY: 1.108 units @ Rs. 1528.74 each, PY: 1.106 
units @ Rs. 1528.74 each) 

2 2 2 

Reliance Liquidity Fund- Daily Dividend Plan 
(CY: 34.968 units @ Rs. 1000.51 each, PY: 243.269 units @ 

Rs. 1000.51 each) 

35 243 

Reliance Liquidity Fund- Direct Plan Daily Dividend Plan 
(CY: 26.222 units @ Rs. 1000.51 each, PY: Nil) 

26 

Reliance Liquidity Fund- Growth Plan Growth Option 
(CY: Nil, PY: 578.637 units @ Rs. 2277.54 each) 

1,314 

Reliance Money Manager Fund- Growth Plan Growth 
Option 
(CY: 1.356 units @ Rs. 2240.7982 each, PY: 1.356 units @ Rs. 
2074.8590 each) 

3 3 18,61£ 

Total 66 1,562 18,68' 

5 Trade Receivables 

(i) Unsecured, considered good 1,813 1,813 1,81 

(ii) Unsecured considered doubtful 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts 

12,008 

(12,008) 

12,008 

(12,008) 

13,81 

13,81 

Total 1,813 1,813 15,6~ 
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iLHI AlRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Ites forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31/ 2017 
(Amount in Rs. '000) 

Particulars As at Asat Asal 
March 31/ 2017 March 31/ 2016 April 1/ 2015 

i Cash and Cash Equivalent 

ash and Cash Equivalent 

Balances with Banks 

Current Accounts 

Fixed Deposits 
8/186 

8/186 

6,232 

6/232 

35/543 

35,543 

Cash on Hand 
)ther Bank Balance 

Margin Money deposit* 
fotal 

458 
8/644 

458 
6/690 

458 
36,001 

• Margin Money deposits given as guarantees 

Margin money deposits are given as guarantees to various government departments. 

7. Other Recoverable 

Trade Advances 4,605 4/605 4/635 

Recoverable from DMRC [Refer note - 28(a)]* 9,661,988 7/662,910 5,168,529 

Other Advances 17 61 3,669 

Other Receivables 

- Interest Receivable on FDR 285 231 179 

Total 9,666/895 7,667/807 5/177/012 

* DMRC Recoverable includes: 

Foreign Exchange Loss on repayment 511/119 622/357 300/822 

Interest Expense 8,200/~23 6,091/387 3/918,251 

Liquidated Damages 349,672 349/672 349,672 

Bank Guarantee Encashed 601,089 601/089 601,08C; 

8 Current Tax Assets 

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 12 2/322 15,26 

Total 12 2/322 15,2E 

9. Other Current Assets 

Prepaid Expenses 1/266 1/281 
Total 1/266 1,281 

'.0;:"": 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

10. Equity Share Capital 

·Particulars As at 
March 31,2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

As at 
Aprill~ 2015 

Authorized 

870,000,000 (py 870,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 
101- each 

8,700,000 

8,700,000 

8,700,000 

8,700,000 

8,700,000 

8,700,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up 

10,000 (previous year 10,000) Equity Shares of 
Rs.lO each fully paid up 

100 

100 

JOO 

100 

tOO 

lOa 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

(a) Movements in equity share capital As at March 31,2017 As at March 31,2016 

No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount 

At the beginning of the year 10,000 100 10,000 100 

Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100 10,000 100 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 101- each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
 
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all
 
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
 

(c) Shares held by holding company
 

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 

Equity Shares No of Shares Percentage No of Shares Percentage 

Noida Global SEZ Private Limited (formerly known 6,500 65% 6,500 65% 
as Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited) 

(d) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% sharcs 

As at March 31,2017 As at March 31,2016 

Equity Shares No of Shares Perccntagc No of Sharcs Percentage 

Noida Glubal SEZ Private Limited (formerly known 6,500 65% 6,500 65% 
as Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited) 

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 3,000 30% 3,000 30% 

11. Other Equity (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

As at As at As at 
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

(I) Retained Earnings 

Balance as per last period Balance Sheet (7,274,606) (7,156,924) (7,156,924) 

Add: Gain I(Loss) for the period (85,098) (117,682) 

Balance at the end of the year (7,359,703) (7,274,606) (7,156,924) 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes fonningpart of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars As at As at As at 
March 31, 2017. March 31,2016 April 1, 2015 

(II) Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance as per last period Balance Sheet 

Add: Gain / (toss) for the period 

Balance at the end of the year 

(III) Other Equity component of financing instrument 

Subordinate Debt 

0% Subordinate Debt 

Inter Corporate Deposit 

Total 

(689) 

840 

151 

(689) 

(6R9) 

15,212,028 

8,007,500 

732,240 

23,951,768 

14,502,028 

5,926,500 

732,240 

21,160,768 

14,502,028 

2,338,900 

732,240 

17,573,168 

16,592,216 13,885,473 10,416,244 

a) 0% Subordinate Debts are repayable by mutual consent of the parties only after the primary lenders (Banks and Financial Institution) are
 
paid in full and in instalments as may be mutually agreed between the company and investors.
 

b) Subordinate Debt and Inter Corporate deposits carry zero percent interest and are repayable after one year from the balance sheet date on
 
mutual consent of the parties.
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DELHI AIllPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statemertts for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars Maturity 
As at 

March 31, 2017 
Asat 

March 31, 2016 
As at 

April 1,2015 
12. Non Current Liablities - Borrowings 

Secured 

Loan from Banks 

Indian Rupee Term Loan (Floating 2012-2025 13,012,243 13,458,272 14,054,881 

Rate of Interest) 

Foreign Currency Loan (Floating 2012-2017 1,732,483 1,644,665 

rate of Interest) 

Loan from Others 

Foreign Currency Loan From 2012-2026 3,063,688 3,274,063 3,185,482 

Financial Institution (Floating 
Rate of Interest) 

Total 16,075,930 18,464,818 18,885,027 

Repayment Terms of Long Term Borrowings 
a. The Rupee Term loan from Banks and Foreign Currency loan from financial institution is repayable by quarterly installment of 0.25% 

starting from 1st April 2012 to January 2015 of the disbursed amount. The quarterly installment shall increase by 0.25%· every year 
after 31st March 2015 and by additional 0.25% in F.Y. 2018-19, 2020-21, 2021-22and 2024-25. 

b. The Foreign Currency Loan from Canara Bank, London Branch is repayable in 21 quarterly instalment of $ 42,000 (Approx. Rs. 
2,785,982) starting from 31st March 2012 and one final instalment of $ 26,118,000 (Approx. Rs. 1,732,482,682) payable on 30th June 
2017. 
The Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank Ltd, Dubai Branch was repaid in Previous year. The loan was paid in 13 quarterly 
instalment of $ 62,500 (Approx. Rs. 3,911,925) starting from 1st April 2012 and final instalment of $ 24,187,500 (Approx. Rs. 
1,513,914,975) paid during the F.Y. 2015-16. 

Effective Interest Rate 

Rupee Term Loan 

Foreign Currency Loan from Bank 

Foreign Currency Loan from Others 

12.02% to 12.62% 

5.80% 

6.28% 

Security for Term Loans 
Indian Rupee Term Loan and Foreign Currency Loan from banks and others, are secured by first charge againslllloveable properties,
 
machinery, machinery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, vehicles, and all other movable assets except project assets, both
 
present and future and the borrower's other assets, book debts, operating cash flow, commission, outstanding moneys including
 
claims etc.
 

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the Investing Company, Mis Reliance Infrastructure Ltd to Consortium Lenders
 
(Banks and Financial Institution) for debt servicing.
 

Loan covenants:
 
Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on indebtedness, debt -equity ratio, net borrowings to EBIDA ratio
 
and debt service coverage ratio. The limitation on indebtedness covenant gets suspended if the company meets certain prescribed
 
criteria. Due to the handing over the project and termination of the concession agreement, pending award of arbitration, the
 
limitation on indebtedness remains suspended the debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan.
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Details of default as on balance sheet date 
Particulars Period of default in Interest Amount Principal Amount Default remedied 

days (Rs.'OOO) (Rs.'OOO) status as on date of 
approval of financials 

Axis Bank Limited, Mumbai 58 19,918 - pending 
Axis Bank Limited, Mutnbai 30 18,017 - pending 
Allahabad Bank 58 14,162 - pending 
Allahabad Bank 30 12,831 - . pending 

Andhra Bank 58 9,133 - pending 
Andhra Bank 30 8,271 - pending 
Bank of India 58 19,720 - pending 
Bank of India 30 17,852 - pending 
Canara Bank, Mumbai 58 7,288 - pending 
Canara Bank, Mumbai 30 6,607 - pending 
Central Bank of India 58 19,778 - pending 
Central Bank of India 30 17,908 - pending 
Dena Bank 58 19,728 - pending 
Dena Bank 30 18,090 - pending 
Punjab & Sind Bank 58 14,987 - pending 

Punjab & Sind Bank 30 13,579 - pending 
UCOBank 58 22,318 - pending 
UCOBank 30 20,190 - pending 
Canara Bank, London' 58 8,439 - pending 
Canara Bank, London' 30 7,894 pending 
IlK, UK 60 20,918 - pending 
IlK, UK 31 19,687 - pending 
IlK, UK 1 20,726 - pending 
Total 358,040 -
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 
Particulars As at As at As at 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

13. Non Current Provision 
Provision for Employee Benefits 

-Provision for Leave Entashment 4,456 4,942 3,505 

Total 4,456 4,942 3,505 

14. Current Liabilities - Borrowings (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 
Particulars As at As at As at 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016· April 1, 2015 
Current Matuiry of Long Term Borrowings 

Secured 
Loan from Banks 
Indian Rupee Term Loan 
Foreign Currency Loan 

Loan from Others 
Foreign Currency Loan From Financial Institution 

5,96,882 5,96,609 2,29,782 
16,96,178 13,333 15,23,829 

1,36,139 1,03,388 46,513 
Total 24,29,199 7,13,330 18,00,124 

15. Trade Payables (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 
Particulars As at As at As at 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and Small Enterprise' 
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro Enterprise and Small 12,72,067 12,93,594 13,06,160 
Enterprise 

Total 12,72,067 12,93,594 13,06,160 

'Note: There are no outstanding dues to Micro, Medium and Small Scale Business Enterprises. This information as required to be disclosed under the· 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company. 

16. Other Financial liabilities (Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars As at As at As at 
March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,601 1,105 1,321 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 5,14,455 5,30,554 21,671 

Total 5,16,056 5,31,659 22,992 
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17. Current Provision 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

-Provision for Leave Encashment 

Total 

18. Other Current Liabilities 

Refundable Security Deposit 

BG Encashment 

Employee Benefit Payable 

Statutory Dues Payable 

Expense Payable 

Total 

Particulars 

Particulars 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

1,131 

1,131 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

32,300 

432,691 
1,745 

6,271 

1,186 

474,193 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

819 2,279 

819 2,279 

(A mOllnt in Rs.'OOO) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 

32,300 41,403 

432,691 432,691 

1,488 1,476 

5,578 4,597 

1,334 32,708 

473,392 512,875 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) . 

Particulars For the Year ended Forthe Year ended 
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

19. Revenue from Operation 

Sale of services 

Revenue from Fare Collection 

Rental Income 

Advertisement Income 

Communication Lease Income 
Total 

20, Other Income 

Interest received on 

Fixed Deposits 

Others 

Dividend Income from current Investmenl 
Net gain on financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Write Back of Miscellaneous Liabilities no long required 

Others Miscellaneous Income 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 

60 

373 

17 

6 

18 

10,526 

57 

2,375 

355 

20 

145 

22 

Total 11,000 2,975 

21. Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries and Wages 39,267 39,151 

Contribution to Provident Fund 2,353 2,894 

Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 1,357 2,583 

Total 42,977 44,628 

22. Finance Cost 

Interest on Loan 

Other interest 

Other borrowing Cost (Including Bank charges) 

105 

13,779 
30 

14,947 0 
Total 13,884 14,977 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the yearended March 31, 2017 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

23. Other Expenses 
Rent 2,208 2,399 

Repairs and Maintenance 

- Buildings 195 

- Machinl:'ry 

- Others 624 758 

Insurance 333 150 

Legal and Professional Charges 30,375 25,262 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 15,198 

Communication Expenses 235 206 

Vehicle Hire Charges 1,054 1,387 

Travelling and Conveyance 1,895 3,017 

Advertisement Expenses 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 12,008 

Miscellaneous Assets Written off 57 

Payment to auditors (refer note no. 29) 95 56 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 2,417 359 

Total 39,236 61,052 

24. Other Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial (gain)jloss in respect of defined benefit plan (840) 689 

Total (840) 689 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming pari of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 25: Financial Instruments - Accounting Classification and Fair Value Measurements 

The fair value of the financial assets and Ii.abilities are included at the amount at which the instruments· could be exchanged in a current traz:u;aetion between willing 
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sate 

The following methods and assumptions were used" to estimate. the fair values: 

1. Fair value of cash and short terms deposits, trade aDd other short· receivables, tradp. payahlffi., othpr rl1rrpnt IiAhiJitif;>~ . short term loans from hank!;; and other financic\l 
in3titutions approximate their ('arryins dll'l.OW'l.ls lAr~eJy due 10 lh~ ~laUJ 1 lelln Ilta(uritie; of these Instruments 

2. Financial instruments with fixed ~md va.ria.ble intcrc9t rates arc c\'nlup.ted by the Company bd~d on p~1ft'Hnelel ~UL:h ~ il1h:~rest r~tt"s Hnd individual rr~dit worthiness of 
thp rountprparty. Haspel on thj~ t>V;.1ll1rlti()n, Allowances are taken to account for thE! expcct?d loooco of thaoc rcccl\'ablc:J. 

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
 

l.evpl: 1 Quotpd (unadjlJstpd) prices m "ctive markets for identical assets or Hab~l-itieB.
 

Level 2 Other techniques for which all mputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observables, either dlre,,·tly or indirectly 

Lev~13: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair yalue that are not based on observal'tle m~uket data 

Financial Assets at fair value 

Investments As at 
April 1,2015 

Investments Asat 
March 31, 2016 

Investments As at 
I'd." ch 31. 2017 

Carrying 
Amount 

18,684 

1,562 

66 

Fair Value 

Levell Level 2 Level 3 

18,684 -

1,562 -

66 -

The management asses:;,;eJ Lhi:1t tldde H::'celvabJes, cash and cash equivalents, other recoverable, trade payables, other hndI1C1al lial'tdities approxim.ate their carrying 
amounts hu·gely due to the short lerrn malul ilies uf these ilU:il1UJll~[ltS. 

Note 26: Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies 

The company's financial risk management is dI1 integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's fmancial risk management policy is set by
 
the Board of Directors.
 

The Company's activities expose It to a vanety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
 

Credit Risk Management
 

Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligations to· pay resulting in financial loss to the Company. The company's l'tusiness model was such
 
that it worked purely on a cash basIS for its fare revenue (which was the predominant source of revenue.
 
The company has handed over its operations 10 DMRC pursuant to default as per Concession Agreement with effect from 1st July 2013. Upon handing over the operations
 
to DMRC, there are certain claims, which are recoverable from DMRC. The realisable amount and timing of realisation is dependent on the final award of the Arbitration.
 

Liquidity Risk
 

a) Post handing over of Ihe operations to DMRC. the company obtains sub-ordinate debts and other debts from the Holding Company to meet out lhe operational cost and
 
repayment of loans.
 

b) Maturiti~s of financial liabilities:
 

Pursuant to default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), the company has handed over its operations and entire assets (including project assets) with effect from 1st
 
July 2013, and the company has claimed the termination payments along with the various associated claims from DMRC in terms of the Concession Agreement. As per the
 
Concession Agreement, DMRC is supposed to discharge the debts of the company, due as on date of termination (Le. due date-effective date of termination) along with
 
other payables (i.e. equity and depreciated value of the project assets, if any, acquired/ installed). The matter is under arbitration and outcome of the arbitration is still
 
awaited. Pending the finalization of arbitration pruceedings, the company continues to show its assets and liabilities in its books of accounts and the company is paying all
 
the operational costs and financial liabilities and other liabilities on the matwity dates by taking sub-ordinale debts/ other debts from the Parent Company. However, the
 
company is showing repayment of loans along with interest as recoverable from DMRC after the date of default. The future cash flows are expected to vary based on
 
future interest rates and foreign exchange rates and unfavourable outcome of arbitration.
 

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
 

,.:. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Particulars 
Le!l!l th.anI 

Year 
1-3 Year. 

3 Y~d.1S luS 
Years 

5 y"",'s anti 
above· 

Financial liabilities 
~1-Mar-17 

Borrowings 2,429,198 2,397,399 3,702,417 9,976,114 

Trade payabIes 1.272,878 -
Other financial liabilities 516,056 - - -
Total 4,218,132 2,397,399 3,702,417 9,976,114 

31-Mar-16 

Borrowings 562,478 3,578,946 2,969,671 12,067,053 

Trade payables 1.293,594 

Other financial liabilities 531,659 

Total 2,387,731 3,578,946 2,969,671 12,067,053 

l-Apr-15 

BorrOWings 1,800,124 2,915,913 2,381,620 13,587,495 

Trade payables 1.306,160 

Other financial liabilities 22,992 

Total 3,129,276 2,915,913 2,381,620 13,587,495 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the faiT value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market pnces. The company is exposed to 2 
types of market risks namely currency risk and interest rate risk. Since the company has han~ed over its opec"alions to DMCR With effect from 1st July 2013 in pursuant to 
default of DMRC, any fluctuation on account of currency risk and interest rate risk with respect to financial liabilities except trade payables (in foreign currency), are 
recoverable from DMRC. The company monitors the risks arising out of trade payables on a regular basis with the help of the group treasury team. Further the company 
may enter into derivatives if the exposure arising out of these risks exceeds significantly. 

a) Currency Risk: 
The Company undertakes transactIOns denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuatiOns anse. Exposure to currency risk relates 
primarily to the Company IS operating actiVities and norrowinBs when transactions are denominated. in a different currency from the CompanY'5 functional currency. 
Pursuant to default of DMRC, any fluctuation on account currency risk with respect to borrOWings are recoverable from DMRC. 

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reportmg renod are as follows. 

Particulars 

Trade payabies 

Trade payabIes 

Advances Receivables 

Secured bank loans 

Interest Accrued but not 
borrowings 

Interest Accrued but 
borrOWings 

due on 

due on 

Currency 

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1,2015 

Amounts in 
foreign cunency 

Amount (INR) 
Amounts in 

foreign currency 
Amount (INR) 

Amounts in 
foreign currency 

" 

Amount (INR) 

USD 1,508 97,766 1,573 104,330 1.603 100,322 

105,346 

23,512 

6,431,299 

1,489 

-

EUR 1,560 108,057 1,560 117,182 1.560 

EUR 348 24,117 348 26,154 348 

USD 75,840 4,917,359 77,628 5,149,287 102,752 

USD 25 1,601 17 1,105 24 

USD 1,342 87,007 802 53,226 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitiVIty to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the 
Company's loss before tax and equity IS due to changes in the carrying value of monetary assets and liabilities other than secured bank loans since the exchange differences 
in respect of these loans are recoverahle from DMRC However, these exchange differences may affect recoverable amount depending upon the final outcome of the 
arbitration. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. 

Effect on loss 
Particulars Currency Change in rate before tax and 

pre-tax eQuity 

31-Mar-17 

USD +10% -9,776.56 

Based on YOY change between USD -10% 9,776.56 
FY16 & FYl7 EUR +10% -8,393.93 

EUR -10% 8,393.93 

31-Mar-16 

llSD +10% -10,433.04 

Based on yay change between lISD -10% 10,433.04 
FY15 & FYI6 EUR +10% -9,102.79 

EUR -10% 9,102.79 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming- part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

b) Interest rate ri.k 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becaus~ uf changes in market interest rates. The Company's 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to. the Company's borrowings with floating interest rates. Pursuant to default of DMRC, any 
fluctuation on account currency risk and interest rate risk with respect to financial liabilities except trade payables (in foreign currency), are recoverable from DMRC. 

I ntecest rate sensitivity 

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for var.iable rate borrowings at the end of reporting period. The analysis is prepared 
assuming the dmount of hability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. 

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on variable rate borrowings with all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax will not 
be affected because interest paid is recoverable from DMRC pursuant to default. 

Collaterals 

The company has pledged part of its short term deposit in order to fulfil collateral (margin's money) requirements of guarantees given in favour of various Government 
Authorities and property plant and equipmenes in favour of lenders. the amortised: cost / carrying amount of collatelals on each reporting date are given in table below. 
The counter parties have an obligation to return the securities to the company upon settlement of contracts. 

Notes March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 April 1,2015 
Current 

Financial assets 

first ch.rg~ 

45ili7Cash and cash equivalents (at Amortised cost) 6 457.87 457.87 

Non-financial assets 

Total cunent aSSets plerlgpd as security 457.87 457.87 457.87 

Non-cunent 

First charge 

Property, plant and equipment at carrying cost 2.1 90,801.86 90,801.86 90,801.86 

Intangible Assets (at carrying cost) - -
Total non-<:t1ITent assets pledKed as security 90,801.86 90,801.86 90,801.86 
Total assets pledged as security 91,259.73 91,259.73 91,259.73 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note: 27 Contingent Liabilities and commitments 

(i) Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts and under litigation' (Amount in Ks. Crores) 
S.No. Contingent Liabilities As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
As at 

April 1, 2015 
Liquidated Damages 60.38 60.38 60.38 
Delhi MetroE-ail Corporation (DMRC) has demanded Rs 60.38 crores as liquidated 
damages for delay in completion of the project. The Company has paid Rs. 43.48 
crOres against the same under protest. The Company has disputed the demand as 
the delay in execution of the project is attributable to the DMRC and matter was 
referred to Arbitration. Arbitrators awarded claim amount of Rs. 23.25 crores and· 
interest on same Rs. 1.75 crores vide order dated 27th June 2014 and sustained the 
balance in favour of DMRC The company has filed the appeal against the award 
by Arbitrators in the High Court. Matter being sub-judice, the net amount Rs. 
34.97 (i.e. Rs. 43.48 crores less Rs. 8.51 crores refunded by DMRC) to DMRC is 
considered as recoverable (Refer Note No 7). 

2 Deployment cost of CISF: 15.70 15.70 15.70 
The Ministry of Urban Development, Government of India had insisted on the 
engagement of Central Industrial Security Force (CISF). Cost of deployment of 
CISF was Rs. 39.48 crores for the period from February 2011 to June 2013. Out of 
the same Rs. 23.78 crores were provided in the books and balance Rs. 15.70 cores 
for the period from 1st May 2012 to 30th June 2013 was not provided in the books. 
The amount of Rs. 39.48 crores along with interest and other miscellaneous claims 
was disputed by the Company and the matter was referred to Arbitration. 
Arbitrators awarded the decision against the company vide arbitration order 
dated 27th June 2014. The company has filed the appeal against the order of 
Arbitration in the High Court. 

3 Maintenance cost of RoIling Stock (CAF) : 2.99 3.28 3.28 
Construcciones Y Auxiliar de Ferrocarriles (CAF) has demanded Rs. 5.35 crores 
and Euro 703,321.59 (approx. Rs. 4.87 crores) i.e. an amount of Rs. 10.22 crores of 
Rolling Stock Maintenance and Euro 4,761,964 (approx. Rs. 32.98 crores) towards 
bank guarantee encashed by the Company. The same was disputed by the 
company and the matter was referred to Arbitration. 

Arbitrators awarded the decision against the company vide arbitration order 
dated 22nd August 2016. The company has filed a petition before Honourable 
high court of Delhi challenging the award. The Honourable High Court of Delhi is 
in process of hearing the petition on the issue of maintainability of the petition. 
Pending the same, the company has not provided, maintenance cost of Rolling 
stock for the period 1st April 2013 to 30th June 2013 amounting to Rs. 1.52 crores, 
Euro 212,739 (approx. Rs.1.47 crores) and impact of Forex Gain of Rs. 6.96 crores 
on reinstatement of bank guarantee encashed, as on March 31, 2017, has not been 
provided in the books of accounts. 

4 CENVAT Input Credit Receivable: 65.01 65.01 65.01 
The company had in earlier years, claimed Cenvat Input Credit of Rs. 
43,04,01,291/- on purchases of fixed assets and accordingly netted off the same 
from the "Right Under Concession Agreement". The claim of Cenvat Credit is 
disallowed by Commissioner, vide Order No.16/ST/COMMR/DM/RTK/2014­
15, dated 12-12-2014 which was under dispute with Commissioner (Appeals) of 
Customs and Excise, Delhi and imposed a penalty of Rs. 65.01 crores. The 
company has filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of commissioner and 
pending the outcome of the appeal, the same has not been provided in the books 
of accounts. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note: 28. Termination of Concession Agreement 
a) Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRq, Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), "the 

company" has terminated the concession agreement and entire assets (including project assets) and operations have been handed over to DMRC 
with effect from 1st July 2013, and DAMEPL has claimed Rs. 2823.17 crOres (Previous Year Rs. 2823.17 crores) from DMRC as termination claims 
along with various ':'ther claims, including interest of Ks, l:l20,0l:l crores (I-'revious year I<s. 609.14 crorrs) on horrnwinp,s, forpi/'jn pxch~nf,p 10" of R, 
3,64 crores (Previous Year Rs, 3.43 crores) on repayment of foreign currency loans & Interest for the penod from 1st Jul 2013 to March 31, 2017, 
unrealized loss of Rs. 47.47 crores (PreVious Year Rs. 58.80 crores) on reinstatement of foreign currency loans as on March 31, 2017 and disputed 
amount of encashment of Bank Guarantee of Rs, 60,10 crores (which includes bank charj1;es of Rs. 5,10 crores for encashment ot Hank (.;uarantf'f'), 
(Previous Year Rs. 60.10 crores) by DMRC . The malleI' has been referr"d (0 a I'bi Io'alion Wht'rl' proc"l'ding ure ovcr amI award is awaited. 
Based on legal opinion, the assets including project assets and borrowings have been continued to be shown in the books of accounts of the 
company. The Company has ceased to provide depreciation/ amortisation with effect from 1st Jul 2013. Pending the receipt of Arbitration Award, 
adjustment, if any, shaIrbe carried out in the financial statements at the time of final outcome of the arbitration. 

b)	 Additional works claims 
The Company had also filed claims worth Rs. 102.36 Crores on account of change ll1 Scope Order, namely adJitiunal wurks fur th" baggage hanJling 
system (Rs. 25.12 crores), additional works related to Passenger Tunnel at IGI Airport Station (Rs, 22.89 crores) and various other additional works 
(Rs. 54.35 crores), which have not been awarded in favour of the company vide Arbitration order dated 27th June 2014, The Company has filed an 
appeal against the award by Arbitrators in the High Court. 

(Amount in Rs '000) --, - ­
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 
As auditors 

Audit Fee 52 26 
Limited Review 17 15 
Internal Financial Control 12 -

In other Capacities 
Certification 14 15 

Total 95 56 

Note: 29. Payment to Auditors 

Note: 30 Note on Demonetisation 
Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 as provided in the 
Table below:­

(Amount in Rs,'OOO) 

Particulars SBNs 

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, .2016 -
(+) Permitted receipts -
(-) Permitted payments -
(-) Amount deposited in Banks -
Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 -

Other Denomination 
notes 

-
-
-

-
-

Total 

-
-
-
-
-

Note 31.	 Un-hedged Foreign Currency Risk Exposure 
Foreign Currency Risk Exposures are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise, Particulars of Un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at 
the reporting date are as follows: 

Foreign Currency (USD '000) (Amount in Rs,'OOO) 
Asat As at As at As at 

March 31, 2017 March 31,2016 March 31,2017 March 31, 2016 

Foreign Currency Exposure in USD 
Trade Payables 1,508 1,573 97,766 104,330 
Borrowing from Banks 75,840 77,628 4,917,359 5,149,287 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 25 17 1,601 1,105 

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1,342 802 87,007 53,226 

Total Payables 78,714 80,020 I 5,103,733 5,307,9481 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Foreign Currency Exposure in Euro 
Trade Payables 
Total Payables 

Foreign Currency (EURO '000) 
As at As at 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

1,560 1,560 

1,560 1,560 I 

(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 
As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 

108,057 117,182 
108,057 117,182 1 

Advances 
Total Receivables 

348 
348 

348 

3481 

24,117 
24,117 

26,154 

26,1541 

Note 32.	 Expenditure incurred in foreign currency 
(Amount in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2017 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016 

Professional and consultancy fees - 723 

Travelling expenses - -
Financial Charges - -
Total - 723 

Note 33.	 Segment Reporting 

There are no reportable segments in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-l08 'Operating Segment' prescribed under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. . 

Note 34.	 Leasing Transaction 

Operating Lease Rentals during the year (Amount in Rs '000) 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2016 
Rent paid- Depot and other premises 2,208 2,399 

Total 2,208 2,399 

Note 35.	 Employee benefit obligations 

A. Defined contribution plans 
(a) Provident Fund; 

(b) State Defined Contribution Plan:
 
-Employer's Contribution to Employees' Pension Scheme 1995
 
-National Pension Scheme
 

Company are required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. These funds are 
recognized by the Income tax authorities. The only obligation of the company with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified 
contribution. The total expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and loss of Rs. 22,68 thousand (for the year ended March 31, 2016: Rs. 17,04 
thousand) represent contributions payable to these plans by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at March 31, 2017, 
contributions of Rs. 98 thousand (as at March 31, 2016 Rs. 1,94, thousand) due in respect of 2016-17 had not been paid over to the plans. The amounts 
were paid subsequent to March 31, 2017. 

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year' 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2016 
Contribution to Provident Fund 1,308 1,314 

Contribution to National Pension Scheme 959 390 
Total 2,268 1,704 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes fanning part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

B.	 Defined benefit plans 
Gratuity is payable to employees as per Payment of Gratuity Act. Leave Encashment is payable to eligible employees who have earned leaves, during 
the employment and/ or on separation as per the Company's Policy. Valuations in respect of Gratuity and Leave· Encashment have been carried out 
by independent actuary, as at the Balance Sheet date, based on the assumptions described below. 

(a) Leave encashment 
Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees who have earned leaves, during the employment and/or on separation as per the company's 
policy. . 

Particulars PV of obli~ation FV of plan Assets Total 
As at April 1, 2015 5,784 - 5,784 

Current Service Cost 1,287 - 1,287 
Interest Expense/ (Income) 357 - 357 
Total Amount Recoe:nised in. Statement of Profit & Loss 1,644 - 1,644 

Remeasurement: 
Difference in Present value of Obligation - - -
Experience (Gain)/Loss 689 - 689 
Total Amount Reco/(nised In OCI bll9 - 689 

.._-~. 

Contributions: 
Employers - - -
Benefit Payments (2,355) 

----, ­
(2,355) 

As At March 31, 2016 5,762 - 5,762 

Particulars PV of obli/(ation FV of plan Assets Total 
As at April 1, 2016 5,762 - 5,762 

Current Service Cost 1,435 - 1,435 

Interest Expense/(Income) 401 - 401 
Total Amount Recoe:nised in Statement of Profit & Loss 1,836 - 1,836 

Remeasurement: 
Difference in Present value of Obligation (623) - (623) 
Experience (Gain)/ Loss (217) - (217) 
Total Amount Reco!:nised in OCI (840) - (840) 

Contributions: 

Employers - -
Benefit Payments (1,170) (1,170) 

As At March 31, 2017 5,588 - 5,588 

The net liability relates to non funded plans is as follows: 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
As at 

April 1, 2015 
Present value of funded defined benefit obligatioJ:ls 5,588 5,762 5,784 
Fair value of plan assets - - -

Funded status Surplus/(Deficitl 5,588 5,762 5,784 
Others - - -
NetliabiIitv arisin!: from defined benefit obJi/(ation 5,588 5,762 5,784 
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VELHI AIRPURT METRU EXPI{ESS PI{JVATh LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2017 

(b) Gratuity 
The Company operates a funded gratuity plan administered by trust. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last 
drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or Company scheme whichever is beneficial. The same is 
payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement whichever'is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service. 

Particulars PV of oblil!ation FV of plan Assets Total 
As at April 1, 2015 2,167 3,110 (943) 

Current Service Cost 505 - 505 

Interest Expense/(Income) 168 - 168 

Total Amount Reco~nised in Statement of Profit & Loss 673 - 673 

Remeasurement (gains)j1osses: 
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest expense/ (income) 169 . (169) 

Actuarial (Gain )/1055 from change in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial (Gain )/1055 from change in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/Ioss from change in Experience adjustments (696) 60 (756) 
Total Amount Recol!nised in OCI (696) 229 (925) 

Contributions: 
Employers - - -
Benefit Payments (714) 714 

As At March 31, 2016 2,144 2,625 (481) 

Particulars PV of oblil!ation FV of plan Assets Total 
As at April 1,2016 2,144 2,625 (481) 

Current Service Cost 511 - 511 

Interest Expense/ (Income) 138 150 (12) 
Total Amount Recol!nised in Statement of Profit & Loss 649 150 499 

Remeasurement (gains)j1osses: 
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest expense/(income) 20 (20) 

Actuarial (Gain )/1055 from change in demographic assumptions -
Actuarial (Gain )/1055 from change in financial assumptions 48 - 48 

Actuarial (gain)/Ioss from change in Experience adjustments (525) - (525) 

Total Amount Reco~nised in OCI (477) 20 /4971 

Contributions: 
Employers - - -
Withdrawals - (769) 769 

Benefit Payments (730) - (730) 

As At March 31, 2017 1,586 2,025 (440) 

The net liability relates to funded plans is as follows: 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
As at 

Aprill, 2015 
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 1,586 2,144 2,167 

Fair value of plan assets 2,025 2,625 3,110 

Funded status Surplusj/Deficit) 440 481 943 
Others - - -
Net liability arisinl! from defined benefit oblil!ation 440 481 943 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

The plan exposes the company to actuarial risks such as' investment risk interest rate risk salary risk and longevity risk 

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate 
'which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
government bonds, 

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will incrl'asl' thl' plan liability; however, this will b" 
partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments. 

Longevity risk The present value of the definl'd benl'lit plan liahility is <:akulated by referen<:e to th" 
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. An increase in the life expectancy of 
the plan participants will increase the plan's liability. 

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the 
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan 
participants will increase the plan's liability. 

C. Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 
The significant a<:tuarial assumptions were as follows: 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

As at 
Aprill,2015 

Mortality Rate lAL2006-08 
Ultimate 

[AL 2006-08 Ultimate IAL 2006-08 Ultimate 

Attrition Rate 10% PA 10% P.A. 10% P.A. 
Imputed l<ate 01 Interest (U) 6.68% P.A. 7.75% P.A. 7.80% P.A. 
Imputed l<ate 01 Interest (1C) I./~% PA 1.!lU'i'o [J.A. 7.110'Yo P.A. 
Salary growth ra te 10.00% P.A. 10.00% PA 10.00% PA 
Return on Plan Assets 6.68% P.A. 6.15% 9.50% 
Rl'maining Working I.ifl' 5 Years 5 Years 5 Years -­

D.	 Sensitivity analysis 
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: 

(a) Change in Assumptions 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

Discount rate (+/-)I%PA (+/-)1% P.A. 
Salary growth rate (+/-) 2% PA (+/-) 2% PA 
Attrition rate (+/-) 5% P.A. (+/ -) 5% P.A. 

(b) Impact on defined benefit obligation 

Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31,2016 

As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

Discount rate 360 557 (322) (471) 

Salary growth rate (169) (248) 182 275 

411Attrition rate (147) (235) 170 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to 
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant 
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of 
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balan<:e sheet. 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes. forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Information with respect to Assets for gratuity is as follows:· 
Major category of plan assets are as follows 

As at March 31, 2017 
Particulars Quoted Unquoted Total in%, 

Government of India assets - - - 0% 
Debt instruments - - - 0% 

Corporate bonds - - - 0% 
Investment funds - - - 0% 

Insurer Managed Funds - 2,025 2,025 100% 
Others - - - 0% 

Total - 2,025 2,025 100% 

As at March 31, 2016 
Particulars Quoted Unquoted Total in eYII 

Government of India assets - - - 0% 
Debt instruments - - 0% 

Corporate bonds - - - 0% 
Investment funds - - - 0% 

Insurer Managed Funds - 2,625 2,625 100% 
Others - - - 0% 

Total - 2,625 2,625 100% 

As at April 1, 2015 
Particulars Quoted Unquoted Total in % 

Government of India assets - - - 0% 
Debt instruments - - - 0% 

Corporate bonds - - - 0% 
Invesnnent funds - - - 0% 

Insurer Managed Funds - 3,110 3,110 100% 
Others - - - 0% 

Total - 3,110 3,110 100% 

E. The following payments are expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years 
Leave Encashment 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
Within the next 12 months i.e. 2017-18 (PY: 2016-17) 1,131 819 
2018-19 (PY: 2017-18) 3,976 340 
2019-22 (PY: 2018-21) 217 2,832 
beyond 2022 (PY: beyond 2021) 2,943 5,061 

Gratuity 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2017 
As at 

March 31, 2016 
Within the next 12 months i.e. 2017-18 (PY: 2016-17) 1,074 258 
2018-19 (pY: 2017-18) 64 1,222 
2019-22 (PY: 2018-21) 131 532 
beyond 2022 (PY: beyond 2021) 727 1,875 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 36.	 Related Party Disclosures 
As per the Indian Accounting Standard-24 prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company's related 

A). Holding Company 

1. Noida Global SEZ Private Limited (formerly known as Spice Commerce and Trade Private Limited)- based on shareholding 
2. Reliance Infrastructure Limited (R lnfra)- based on control 

B) Key management personnel
 
Mr. Abhay Mishra Director
 
Mr. Salish Kumar Mishra Director
 

C) Companies under the significant influence of individual having significant 
influence over R Infra
 

Utility Powertech Ltd.(UPL)
 
Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
 
Reliance Communicabons Limited 

Details of transactions and closing balances
 
D) Key management personnel compensation
 

Particulars Fnr th,. y,..1r ,.nd('d 
March .11, 2017 

For the year ended 
March :11,2016 

Compensahon of key management personnel' 27,312 19,999 
Total compensation 27,312 19,999 
• Post retirement benefits IS deterrruned by the Company as a whole for all the employees put together and hence disclosure of post
 
employment benefits of key management personnel is not separately available.
 

E) Transactions with related parties	 (Amounts in Rs.'OOO) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31,2017 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2016 

Statement of profit and loss heads 
Expenses: 

Consultancy Charges 
- Mr. Natwar Singh Sekhawat 
Insurance Premium 

- 1,200 

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 

Rent 

333.28 177 

- Reliance Infrastructure Limi ted 

Reimbursement of Expenses by the Company 

1,328 -

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 

Hire Charges 
8 26 

- Utility Powertech Limited 

Other Transactions 
Subscription to 0% Subordinate Debt by 

1,431 1.219 

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 
Subscription to Subordinate Debt by 

2.081,000 3,587,600 

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 710,000 -

F) Outstanding balances arising from sale/purchases of goods and services 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 
Trade Payable 

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 8,012 6,459 

- Utility Powertech Limited 25 91 

Trade Receivables 
- Reliance Communications Limited 1,813 1.813 

Security Deposit Payable 
- Reliance Communications Limited 25,500 25,500 

41018161
Stamp



DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming parto! Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

G) Luans to/from related parties 
Particulars For the year ended 

March 31, 2017 
For the year ended 
March 31,2016 

Balance sheet heads (Closing balances): 
Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) taken 
- Reliance lrifrastrocture Limited 

Subordinated Debt 
0% Subordinate Debt received 

Inter Corporate Deposit 

15,212,028 
8,007,500 

732,240 

14,502,028 
5,926,500 

732,240 

..	 . . The above disclosure does not mclude transactions with pubhc utihty servIce provIders, VIZ. electricity and communication m the normal course of 
business. 

Bank Guarantee given by Investing Company, Mis Reliance Infrastructure Limited to Commissioner of Customs, Mumbai Rs. 193,638,404/- (PY: Rs. 
193,638,404/-) 

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the Investing Company, Mis Reliance Infrastructure Ltd to Consortium Lenders (Banks and 
Financial Institution) for debt serVicing. 

Note 37.	 Earning per Equity Share 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

(a) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share 
From continuing operations attributable to the equity holders of the company (8,510) (11,768) 

From discontinued operation -

Total basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of thp company (8,510) (11,768) 

(b) Wei2hted avera2e number of shares used as the denominator 
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in 
calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 

10,000 10,000 

Note: There are no outstandmg dilutive potential eqUity shares 

Note 38.	 Deferred Tax Assets 
In compliance with IND AS-12, "Income Taxes" prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the deferred tax asset 
arising on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation has not been recognised in view of consideration of prudence and 
uncertainty regarding the realisation of the same in the foreseeable future. 

(Amounts in Rs. '000) 

Deferred Tax Assets As at 
March 31, 2017 

As at 
March 31, 2016 

As at 
April 1, 2015 

Deferred Tax Liability 
Excess depreciation as per companies act over income tax act (2,837,865) (2,935,722) (2,935,722) 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability (2,837,865) (2,935,722) . (2,935,722) 

Deferred Tax Assets 
Unabsorbed depreciation & Carry forward Losses 5,034,611 5,207,467 5,234,632 

Provision for Leave Encashment 1,669 1,780 1,787 

Provision for doubtful debt 3,587 3,710 -
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 5,039,867 5,212,957 5,236,419 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2,202,002 2,277,235 2,300,697 

Differed Tax Incomel Loss for the year (75,233) (23,462) -
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 39.	 Capital Management 
The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:. 
1. Total equity - Share Capital, Retained Profit/ (Loss) and Other Equity. 
2. Working capital. 

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern. The capital stmchJrf' of the Company is based on 
manaeement's judef'mf'nt of thf' appropriatf' balance of key elements in order to meet its strategi~ and day-to-day needs. The Company considers the 
amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in lil:ht of ch<mges in.economic conditions and the risk characteristics of thf' 
underlying assets. 

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus On total equity so as to maintain invc5tor, crcditor, and market 
confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on .keeping strong total cquity basc to ensurc 
independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the 
Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary· adjust, its capital structure. The Company is not subject to 
financial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements. 
Pursuant to default by DMRC the management monitors the requirement of capital to repay the borrowings and to meet the other operational costs 
of the company from time to time and infuse the capital through sub-ordinate debt, which is classified .as other equity. The Company's goal is to 
continue to operations after the settlement of dispute with DMRC. 

Amount in Rs. '000 

Summary of quantitative data of the capital of the As at As at As at 
company March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 
Equity. ISSllf'd and paid up capital 100 100 100 

Other Equity -Sub-ordinate debts 16,592,216 13,885,473 10,416,244 

TOTAL 16,592,316 13,885,573 10,416,344 

Note 40; 

a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
The Company has accumulated losses which exceeded the net worth of the company. Pending final outcome of the arbitration, Holding Company 
'Reliance Infrastructure Limited' continues to fund the Statutory and Other obligations of DAMEPL. As legally advised, DAMEPL's claim for the 
termination payments are considered fully enforceable. The financial statements are continued to prepare on going concern basis. 

b)	 Impairment of Intangible Assets 
Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRq, the company has terminated the concession agreement and referred 
the matter for arbitration. The company has handed over entire assets and operations to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013 and has claimed 
various amount from DMRC as termination and other claims. Based on legal opinion, the assets including project assets have been continued to be 
shown in the books of accounts of the company though no depreciation/ amortisation has been provided with effect from 1st JuI2013. 
Since the company has already handed over the entire assets and operations to DMRC and the amount claimed by the company from DMRC is 
higher than the carrying value of aSSl'ts in the books, no adjustment has been made in the carrying value of assets/project assets 011 account of lND 
AS, which may otherwise be reqUired. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for ihe year ended March 31, 2017 

Note 41.	 First Time adoption of Ind AS 

These financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For period up to and 
including the year. ended 31 March 2016, the company prepared its financials statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act20lJ, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (accounts) Rules 2014 (Indian GAAP). 

Accordingly, the company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for period ending 31 march 2017, together with 
the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summit of significant accounting policies. In preparing 
these financials statements, the company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the company's date of transition to Ind AS. This 
nole explains the principal adjustments made by the company in restating the company's Indian GAAP financial statements including the balance 
sheets as at 1 April 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

a.l Ind AS optional exemptions
 
a.l.l. Deemed cost
 

As per Para 07AA of INO AS 101, since the functional currency of the company has not changed, the company has exercised the option to use the
 
deemed cost exemption whereby the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets as recognised in the financial
 
statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous IGAAP will be used as cost for Ind AS after making adjustments as
 
per Para 021 and 021A.
 

a.l.2 Long Term Foreign Currency Monetary Items
 
Ind AS 101 provides an exemption to account for exchange differences arising on translation of such items as per previous GAAP (on application of
 
Para 46A of AS-II) can be continued under Ind AS for Items outstanding as on March 31, 2016.
 
The company has elected to apply this exemption for its long term foreign currency borrowings and investments.
 

a.l.3 Financial assets or intangible assets accounted for in accordance with Appendix A of lnd AS 11 (Service concession arrangements)
 

The company has used exemption under Ind AS 101 and has continued to adopt the accounting policy of previous GAAP for amortization for 
intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements i.e. Rights Under Concession Agreement recognized in the financial statements. 

a.2 lnd AS mandatory exceptions 
a.21 Estimates 

The company's estimates in accordance with lnd ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in 
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those 
estimates were in error. 
lnd AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. 

a.22 Classification and measurement of financial assets 

Ind AS 101 requires the company to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at 
the date of transition to Ind AS. 
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2017 

Note 42.	 Events occurring after the reporting period 
(a) Other events,
 

There are no events occurring after the reporting period which have material impact on the financials.
 

Note 43.	 Previous years (corresponding period) 
The previous year (corresponding period) figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary. 

Note 44. Approval of financial statements 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 13, 2017. 

Note 45. Figures have been rounded off to Rupees thousand otherwise than specifically stated. 

forASP& Co.	 For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
firm Regn. No.- 000576N 

~~ 
Salish Kumar Mishra 

Whole time Director Director 
M.No.098941 0213L o[N-03538005
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